Second Annual Report of the Society of S. Alphege, Abp. & M. London: G. J. Palmer, 32, Little Queen Street, Lincoln's Inn Fields, 1867.

REPORT For Year ending S. ALPHEGE'S DAY, 1867.

THE Council of the Society of S. Alphege, in offering their present Report regret that the increase in the number of the Associates has been, though steady, not so rapid as might have been expected, a circumstance which is in a great measure attributable to the fact that the governing body has not been hitherto settled in a sufficiently central position.

In the hope of remedying this evil the Council beg to recommend that the Head-Quarters of the Society be for the future established in London.

They have been in communication with various Churchmen of note residing in or near London, with a view to their holding office on the Council, and confidently hope that under the new management the number of Associates may be largely increased, and so funds may be provided for the more effectual carrying out of the objects of the Society.

These objects are, it will be remembered, the promotion of the study of Church Archaeology, to the end that a more general knowledge should exist of the correct form and use of things employed in the service of the Church; the preservation and restoration of things once dedicated to the honour of God; the presentation to poor churches or missions which cannot otherwise procure them, of such lawful ornaments of the Church and of the Ministers thereof, as may be required for the due celebration of the services thereof; and also the loan of Vestments and other ornaments to churches for special occasions, Dedication Festivals, Funerals, or such like.

During the past year the Council have taken in hand the restoration of the Chancel of the *Church of S. Botolph*, Cambridge, the cost of which, it is estimated, will be about £400. An appeal was made by means of printed circulars to the Associates at Christmas last, but it has not hitherto met with so hearty a response as might have been anticipated. At present only £60 has been promised, and the Council fear that unless the Associates promise more liberal contribution the work will have to be abandoned.

The Council think that they may congratulate the Society on the present of a white frontal to the *Chapel of S. John the Evangelist, Hurstpierpoint College*. For the working of this frontal they are indebted to a Sister Associate. It was exhibited in Cambridge shortly before Easter last, the season at which it was first used in the Church's service.

A red silk chasuble, stole, and maniple, have been presented to the *Church of the Holy Trinity, Portsea*.

A chasuble and alb have been made for the Rev. Edward Dix.

A green frontal has been given to the Mission Chapel at Middlesboro, Yorkshire.

Money has been collected towards the purchase of a flagon for the *Church of Eakring, Northamptonshire*.

The Council have also lent stoles and other vestments to various churches for use on particular occasions.

The Council think that the Society may be now considered to have been fairly set on foot, and hope that the seat of its government being now changed, new energy may be inspired into the Associates.

A large sphere of usefulness is undoubtedly opened to it, and although it is at present but a small society, and a poor one, the Council trust that the Associates will use to the utmost any opportunity that may come in their way of advancing its work.

This may be done in numberless ways: the Council may be permitted to suggest to the Associates that they should strive each to gain one new Associate every year; that they should collect contributions from their friends to be devoted to the General Fund of the Society, or towards special objects sanction by it, that they should urge ladies to work for the society.

The Council hope that the Associates will respond heartily to the appeal now made to them, that so the Society may be enabled to carry out year by year more effectually the work which has been undertaken by it to the Glory of God and the wellbeing of His Church.

Cambridge, S. Alphege's Day, 1867.

Warden.

The Right Rev. The LORD BISHOP OF DUNEDIN.

Sub-Warden.

HUGH J. C. BEAVEN, Esq., F.S.A., Barrister-at-Law, 4, Middle Temple Lane, E.C.

Chaplain.

Rev. CHARLES WALKER, M.A., Connaught House, Brighton.

Bursar.

Rev. JAMES B. POWELL, B.A. Chislehurst, Kent.

Curator.

C. A. BEAVEN, Esq., B.A., Barrister-at-Law, 91, S. George's Road, S.W.

Secretary.

J. WILSON PICKANCE, Esq., LL.B., Heath House, Reigate.

Council.

REV. R. WILKINS, M.A., Clifton House, Exeter.
T. PARRY WOODCOCK, Esq., M.A., 3, Westminster Chambers, S.W.
ROBERT HORNELL, Esq., M.A., Barrister-at-Law, 4, Serle Street, Lincoln's W. C. Inn.
HENRY W. POWELL, Esq., Chislehurst, Kent.

Transcribed by Richard J. Mammana, 2012 | rjm45@columbia.edu